
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Disabled persons needing reasonable accommodations should call Central Arizona Fire and Medical 
Authority at (928) 772-7711 prior to the scheduled meeting. 

Page 1 of 2 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Central Arizona Fire and 
Medical Authority Board of Directors and the general public that the Central Arizona Fire and Medical 
Authority will hold a meeting open to the public on Tuesday, October 18, 2016 at 4:30 p.m. The meeting 
will be held at Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority, Station 61, 1133 W. Road 3 North, Chino Valley, 
Arizona. The Board may vote to go into Executive Session on any agenda item, pursuant to A.R.S. §  
38431.03(A)(3) for discussion and consultation for legal advice with Authority's Attorney on matters as set 
forth in the agenda item. The following topics and any variables thereto, will be subject to Board 
consideration, discussion, approval, or other action. All items are set for possible action. 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Prescott Valley Town Council Report 

4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

Those wishing to address the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board need not request permission 
in advance. However, we ask that you complete a Call To Public Form for the record. The Board is not 
permitted to discuss or take action on any item raised in the Call to the Public due to restrictions of the Open 
Meeting Law; however, individual Board members may be permitted to respond to criticism directed to them. 
Otherwise, the Board may direct the staff to review the matter or the matter may be placed on a future 
agenda. Individuals may be limited to speak for three (3) minutes with a total of 30 minutes allotted for Call to 
the Public per meeting. 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve Regular Session Minutes  September 20, 2016 

B. Approve Executive Session Minutes  September 20, 2016 

C. Approve General Fund Financial Statements 

D. Approve Fire Protection Agreements: Boucher, Buckley, Chapman, Decker, Drake Cement LLC, Ellis, 
Elswick, Hartmann, Johnson, Long, Loudon, Lyon, McKay, Millan, Neary, Nelson, Paulden Christian 
Fellowship (2), Pickens, Pollan, Pullman and Pernoud, Risinger, Randa, Robinson, Ruehle, Vairma 

E. Approve Addendum to Professional Services Contract with Physio Control, Inc. for Previously Approved 
LifePak Maintenance Agreement 

F. Approve Purchasing Agreement with Pinal Rural Fire Rescue / Medical District 

6. VOTE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Discussion and Consideration of Appointment of Architect Pursuant to A.R.S. §38 431.03(A)(1) and 
Consultation with and Instruction to Attorney Pursuant to A.R.S. §38 431.03(A)(4) Related to 
Architectural Services Contract for 8603 E. Eastridge Property 

7. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Discussion and Possible Approval of Architectural Services for 8603 E. Eastridge Property 

8. CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Letters from the Public 

B. Monthly Division Reports from the Fire Chief and staff in regard to current activities of the Fire Authority 
and the status and progress relating thereto 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approve Policy Amendments for 202 Testing, 810 District Vehicles, and Move Policy 820 Hydrant 
Testing to Standard Operating Guidelines (SOG) Manual 

B. Discussion and Possible Approval of Resolution 2016-14 Sponsoring a Type 3 Incident Management 
Team for Regional Support in Arizona 

10. VOTE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Real Estate Negotiations Pursuant to A.R.S. §38431.03(A)(7) and Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. 
§38431.03(A)(3) Re: Agency Property Located at 238 North Highway 89, Chino Valley 



11. NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED 

A. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Agency Property Located at 238 N. Highway 89, Chino Valley 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Disabled persons needing reasonable accommodations should call Central Arizona Fire and Medical 
Authority at (928) 772-7711 prior to the scheduled meeting. 

Page 2 of 2 

 



 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
FIRE BOARD 

REGULAR SESSION 
 

September 20, 2016 
 

MINUTES 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 
 

Board Chairman Rutherford called the Regular Session of the Central Arizona Fire 
and Medical Authority (CAFMA) Board of Directors' meeting to order on Tuesday, 
September 20, 2016, at 4:30 p.m. at the Town of Prescott Valley, Library Auditorium, 
7401 E. Civic Circle, Prescott Valley, Arizona. 
 
Members Present: Board Chairman Steve Rutherford, Board Clerk Julie Pettit, 

Board Members Darlene Packard, and Bob Page 
 
Members Absent: Board Member Dave Dobbs 
 
Staff: Fire Chief Scott Freitag, Assistant Chief of Administration 

Dave Tharp, Administrative Manager Susanne Dixson, 
Administrative Assistant III Laura Mowrer 

 
Others in Attendance: Attorney Nick Cornelius attended telephonically 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Chairman Rutherford led the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Prescott Valley Town Council Report 
 
No presentation was given.  

 
4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

 
Chairman Rutherford opened the meeting for public comments.  
 
Chairman Rutherford mentioned the passing of Bill Fain and shared condolences for 
the family. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Page 3 of 242



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Meeting – September 20, 2016 

Page 2 
 

All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Central 
Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board and will be enacted by one motion. There 
will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion is desired, that item will 
be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately for 
discussion and possible action. 

 
A. Approve Regular Session Minutes  August 16, 2016 
B. Approve Executive Session Minutes  August 16, 2016 
C. Approve General Fund Financial Statements 
D. Approve Intergovernmental Agreement with Arizona Department of 

Transportation for Vehicle Maintenance and Fuel Purchase 
E. Approve Fire Protection Agreements: Burton, Byler, Carpenter, Cunningham, 

Dalton, Garchen Institute, Greeley, Gresham, Howell, Jones, Kear, Killian Living 
Trust (16), Mattert, McManigal, Mingus Mountain Estate Residential Center, Inc., 
Mladejovsky, Neilson, Ocampo, Owens, Payne, Polacek, Prater, Raithel, 
Reichard, Schaible, Sharber, Shepherd, Smith, Stoltzmann, Thomas, Turczyn, 
Williams, Yeti LLC 

 
Board Member Packard made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Items 5A 
through E. Clerk Pettit seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 

 
6. OLD BUSINESS 

 
A. Letters from the Public 

 
Chief Freitag mentioned that there are blanks on some of the thank you letters 
due to removing private medical information. He expressed his appreciation of 
residents sending cards. 
 
Chairman Rutherford mentioned the letter regarding the Healing Field and 
expressed gratitude of Board Member Packard and Fire Marshal Rick Chase for 
their work to make this event successful.  
 
Board Member Packard stated that the Healing Field could not be accomplished 
without everyone helping, and she thanked Captain Jeremiah King, Station 53 
Crew, Station 50 B-Shift, Chief Tharp, and many others. She stated that there 
are two Healing Fields in Arizona and 40 in the country.  
 

B. Monthly Division Reports from the Fire Chief and staff in regard to current 
activities of the Fire Authority and the status and progress relating thereto 
 

Page 4 of 242



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Meeting – September 20, 2016 

Page 3 
 

Chief Freitag mentioned that while preparing for CAFMA, the administration fee 
for fire protection agreements in Central Yavapai's area had been reduced to 
match the Chino Valley rate as we are in the business of providing service to the 
community. He stated that we have experienced an 18% increase in agreements 
in the Central Yavapai area. 
 
Chief Freitag applauded Firefighter Doug Copenhaver’s talent of playing the 
bagpipes. He also commended Captain Jeremiah King for his work with the 
Honor Guard and Patriot Run. Chief Freitag praised Training Chief John 
Feddema and his staff for their exceptional work at the Arizona State Fire School.  
 
Chief Freitag gave an overview regarding the draft letter from the Citizens Tax 
Committee (CTC). He explained that Chairman Rutherford, Board Member Page, 
Chief Tharp, Attorney Cornelius, and himself had a two-hour meeting with 
members of the CTC. They had a good dialogue and had some philosophical 
differences and reviewed some of their concerns. Outsourcing was considered 
prior to hiring personnel as the CTC had recommended. Additionally, we are 
unable to contract with the Town of Chino Valley for fire service as the Chino 
Valley Fire District was already in existence. Chief Freitag explained that there 
are fire service agencies that contract with fire departments to cover their areas. 
We considered contracting with Chino Valley Fire District; however, there were 
areas of fiscal savings such insurance premiums and PSPRS costs that could 
not be obtained under a contract. The Fire Boards did their due diligence and did 
what they felt was best for the taxpayers. They spent 18 months reviewing the 
options. Chief Freitag explained that members of the CTC attended some of 
these meetings, asked questions, and applauded the efforts of the Boards.  
 
Chief Freitag mentioned that CTC President Mr. Lamerson presented a clean 
letter; however, there are still some inaccuracies and some confusion with the 
elections of Central Yavapai and Chino Valley Fire District Boards as many 
believe we merged.  
 
Chief Freitag pointed out that community leaders continue to support the 
partnership of the Fire Authority as we are reducing costs and duplication. He 
mentioned that he was able to provide clarification to Sandy Griffis with YCCA 
regarding fire contracts and financial transactions.  
 
Chief Tharp stated that he received election certifications for the three Chino 
Valley Fire District Board candidates. The ballot was reviewed and approved for 
publication for the Central Yavapai Fire District Board of Director's election. 
 
Chief Freitag mentioned that Pastor Todd League, future Chino Valley Fire 
District Board member, is in attendance.  
 

Page 5 of 242



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Meeting – September 20, 2016 

Page 4 
 

Chairman Rutherford expressed his appreciation of the Administrative staff 
preparing for the audit, and he thanked Chief Tharp for his work on the workers’ 
compensation risk pool creation. 
 
Fire Marshal Chase thanked Fire House Subs as they donated several pallets of 
water. He also thanked everyone for assisting with the Healing Field. 
 
Board Member Packard asked for clarification on the Prescott Regional 
Communications Center (PRCC) bill of $32,267.00 which had increased $6,000 
from last month. 
 
Chief Polacek explained that we are billed based on last year’s call volume, but 
our annual expenses do not exceed our budgeted amount. He stated that we are 
working with PRCC regarding the finances and $31.00 per call it is still a 
reasonable rate. The monthly bill fluctuates according to expenses such as 
electricity and personnel services. 
 
Chief Freitag stated that the proportional representation is not working with 
PRCC; however, with Prescott Police Chief Black and the new city manager, we 
may be able to turn the agreement into a cooperative partnership. PRCC is also 
hiring a director to handle the business side of the organization which should 
help long-term. We continue to strengthen our relationship with the City of 
Prescott.  
 
Chief Polacek mentioned that off District responses have been placed on hold to 
regroup, but mentioned there were several requests that were declined this 
week. 
 

7. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Update Regarding Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for Architectural Services for 
8603 E. Eastridge 
 
Chief Freitag explained that we solicited architects statewide due to only 
receiving one submittal with the initial search. We received three submittals and 
one architect declined due to their workload; all submittals were from local 
architects. The deadline was 4:00 p.m. today so there is no additional 
information. 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Discussion and Possible Approval of Station 57 Roof Replacement Bid 
 
Chief Bliss informed the Board that there are three bids for the Station 57 roof 
replacement included in the Board packet. He requested the Board's approval of 

Page 6 of 242



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Meeting – September 20, 2016 

Page 5 
 

the $36,089 Granite Basin Roofing bid as they provide a 12 year product and 
workmanship warranty. 
 
Chairman Rutherford requested confirmation that the quotes were still valid even 
though they are dated in January. Chief Bliss stated that all vendors were 
contacted and approved their prior submittals.  
 
Clerk Pettit made a motion to approve Granite Basin Roofing, Inc. Station 57 roof 
replacement bid in the amount of $36,089.00. Board Member Page seconded the 
motion. MOTION CARRIED  
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 

B. Discussion and Possible Approval of Kellan Eckle's Request for Residency 
Deviation 
 
Chief Freitag informed that Board that Firefighter Eckle requested approval to 
move to Anthem which is beyond the 30 minute radius. This is due to his wife's 
employment opportunity. Chief Freitag recommends the Board's approval. 
Chairman Rutherford confirmed that there have been other approvals for 
residency deviation. 
 
Board Member Page made a motion to approve Kellan Eckle’s request for 
residency deviation. Board Member Packard seconded the motion. MOTION 
CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 

C. Discussion and Approval of Resolution 201613 Authority to Enter into Real 
Estate Purchasing Agreement with Fain Signature Group, LLC 
 
Chief Freitag stated that the title company is requesting a resolution from the 
Board. 
 
Board Member Page made a motion to approve Resolution 2016-13 
authorizing Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority to enter into a real 
estate purchase agreement with Fain Signature Group, LLC for the purchase 
of real property. Clerk Pettit seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 

9. VOTE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Page 7 of 242



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Regular Meeting – September 20, 2016 

Page 6 
 

 
A. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38431.03(A)(3) Related to Allegations Raised 

by Members of the Public and/or Elected Officials 
 
Board Member Packard made a motion to go into Executive Session. Board 
Member Page seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 

Chairman Rutherford recessed to go into Executive Session at 5:11 p.m. 
 
Board Member Packard made a motion to move back into Open Session. Board 
Member Page seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED  
 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 

Chairman Rutherford reconvened into Public Session at 5:37 p.m. 
 
10. OLD BUSINESS CONTINUED 

 
A. Discussion and Possible Action Related to Allegations Raised by Members of the 

Public and/or Elected Officials 
 
No discussion. 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Board Member Page made a motion to adjourn. Clerk Pettit seconded the motion. 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
AYES:  Packard, Page, Pettit, Rutherford 
NAYS:  None 
 
Chairman Rutherford adjourned the meeting at 5:37p.m. 

 
 
  
Clerk Date 
 

Page 8 of 242



Page 12 of 242



Page 13 of 242



Page 14 of 242



Page 15 of 242



Page 16 of 242



Page 17 of 242



Page 18 of 242



Page 19 of 242



Page 20 of 242



Page 21 of 242



Page 22 of 242



Page 23 of 242



Page 24 of 242



Page 25 of 242



P
a
g
e
 2

6
 o

f 
2
4
2



Z:\Administration\Finance\Financials\FYE 06-30-17\Rev Exp Graphs\Rev Exp Graphs 2016-9-30.xlsx\Rev Data

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
REVENUE

Current YTD
Month Revenue Budget

Funding Requirement 
CYFD 55,670$              14,449,633$      23.42
Funding Requirement 
CVFD 26,433$              3,850,599$        11.12
Fire Protection
Contracts 44,510$              124,000$           18.73
Fleet Mtc 9,554$                24,750$             4.02
Training Center 220$                   39,000$             0.09
Fire
Prevention 370$                   48,300$             0.16
Tech
Services 10,557$              135,000$           4.44
Interest Income 375$                   21,000$             0.16
Grants -$                   -$                  0.00
W/H
Purch Grp 23,840$              50,000$             10.03
Other Income 66,149$              92,600$             27.83

237,678$            18,834,882$      100.00   

Page 27 of 242



Funding Requirement CYFD 
23.42% 

Funding Requirement CVFD 
11.12% 

Fire Protection 
Contracts 

18.73% 
Fleet Mtc 

4.02% 
Training Center 

0.09% 

Fire 
Prevention 

0.16% 

Tech 
Services 
4.44% 

Interest Income 
0.16% 

Grants 
0.00% 

W/H 
Purch Grp 

10.03% 

Other Income 
27.83% 

Funding
Requirement CYFD
Funding
Requirement CVFD
Fire Protection
Contracts
Fleet Mtc

Training Center

Fire
Prevention
Tech
Services
Interest Income

Grants

W/H
Purch Grp
Other Income

            CAFMA   
FY 2016 - 2017 

General Fund Revenue 
For the Period Ending 9/30/16 

Page 28 of 242



Z:\Administration\Finance\Financials\FYE 06-30-17\Rev Exp Graphs\Rev Exp Graphs 2016-9-30.xlsx\Exp Data

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY
EXPENSES

Current Month  
Actual YTD Budget

Personnel 1,447,444$             15,738,508$           84.13       
Supplies 124,897$               1,604,610$             7.26         
Services 131,161$               1,537,573$             7.62         
Capital Outlay 16,928$                 4,155,027$             0.98         

1,720,431$             23,035,718$           100          

Page 29 of 242



Personnel  
84.13% 

Supplies 
7.26% 

Services 
7.62% 

Capital Outlay 
0.98% 

Personnel

Supplies

Services

Capital Outlay

            CAFMA  
FY 2016 - 2017 

General Fund Expenditures 
For the Period Ending 9/30/16 

 

Page 30 of 242



Page 31 of 242



x:\administration\office\fire board\miscellaneous\bank reconciliation board approval sheet.docx 

The Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board of Directors have reviewed and 

approved the following financial documents to include Income Statements, Balance 

Sheets, and Bank Reconciliations with supporting documents, Revenue and 

Expenditure Graphs, and Cash Flow Projections in compliance with A.R.S. § 48-805, 

807. 

CAFMA General Fund 

 

   
 Fire Board Chairperson Date 
 
 
 
   
 Fire Board Clerk Date 

Page 32 of 242



P
a
g
e
 3

3
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 7

2
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 7

3
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 7

4
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 7

5
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 7

6
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 7

7
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 7

8
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 7

9
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 8

0
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 8

1
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 8

2
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 8

3
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 1

0
3
 o

f 
2
4
2



Page 104 of 242



Page 105 of 242



Page 106 of 242



Page 107 of 242



Page 108 of 242



Page 109 of 242



Page 110 of 242



Page 111 of 242



Page 112 of 242



Page 113 of 242



Page 114 of 242



P
a
g
e
 1

1
5
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 1

1
6
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 1

1
7
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 1

1
8
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 1

1
9
 o

f 
2
4
2



Page 120 of 242



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR 

PURCHASING  

BETWEEN CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 

AND 

PINAL RURAL FIRE RESCUE/MEDICAL DISTRICT 
 

PREAMBLE 

 

This Agreement, effective the _____ day of _________, 

2016, by and between the CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL 

AUTHORITY, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona 

("Agency" or “Eligible Procurement Unit”) and the Pinal Rural Fire 

Rescue / Medical District, a political subdivision of the State of 

Arizona (the "Member"). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the Member and the Agency are empowered pursuant 

to A.R.S. §11-952, A.R.S. §15-342(13), A.R.S. §48-805, and A.R.S. 

§41-2632 to enter into this Agreement for purposes of carrying out 

their mutual responsibilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Member and the Agency wish to cooperate with 

each other in order to more effectively and economically purchase 

material and equipment (“Goods”) consistent with the terms and 

conditions set forth herein. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual promises and 

covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

 

COVENANTS 

 

SECTION 1. - SCOPE OF WORK AND COMPENSATION  

 

Agency's responsibilities and obligations 

 

1. For the term of this Agreement, the Agency shall act as a 

purchasing agent (“Purchasing Agent”) for the Member when 

requested.  

 

2. The delivery method of requested purchases will be determined 

on a case by case basis and may include but is not limited to: 

 

a) Direct shipment to Member 
 

b) Delivery by Agency personnel 
 

c) Pick-up by Member 
 

3. The Agency shall maintain records on all purchases made on 

behalf of the Member, and shall provide the Member with a 

Page 121 of 242



 2 

report of all purchases made on request within a reasonable 

time thereafter. 

 

4. The Agency shall submit an invoice to the Member on a monthly 

basis reflecting the compensation owed to the Agency. 

 

5. The Agency agrees that the priority given to the Member’s 

purchases will be comparable to the priorities given to other 

purchases by the Agency taking into consideration all other 

purchasing commitments. 

 

6. The Agency will insure that vendor contracts will allocate to 

the vendors all risk of loss of or damage to the operations 

supplies until they are delivered to, inspected, and accepted 

by: (1) the Member at their respective warehouses or storage 

facilities; or (2) the Agency at its storage facility. 

 

7. If operations supplies are damaged or nonconforming to the 

contract, each Member, or the Agency on that Member’s behalf, 

may reject the supplies and arrange for them to be returned to 

the vendor. With a Member’s consent, the Agency may direct the 

vendor to promptly deliver non-damaged, conforming replacement 

supplies to the Member or the Agency storage facility on that 

Member’s behalf.  

 

8. While acting as the Procurement Officer, the Agency shall be 

responsible for all damage or loss incurred to Goods ordered 

by Members as a result of the Agency’s negligent acts or 

omissions and shall at all times maintain all-risk property 

and contents insurance on its storage facility and the Agency 

supplies warehoused there. 

 

9. Goods stored at an Agency warehouse pending payment of the 

Agency invoice and delivery to the Member shall remain the 

property of the Agency until payment is actually received and 

cleared by the Agency’s bank and/or such goods are actually 

delivered to the Member.  

 

10. In the case of “direct delivery” of goods to a Member by a 

vendor or manufacturer, any damages suffered by any goods so 

shipped shall be the responsibility of the vendor or shipper 

thereof, the manufacturer, and the Member, as their interests 

and duties may arise there from, and not the responsibility of 

the Agency. 

 

Member’s responsibilities and obligations 

 

11. The Member shall request the Agency to make purchases when 

desired. Requests shall be in the form of an ordering process 

established by the Agency. 

 

Page 122 of 242



 3 

12. Compensation to be paid to the Agency shall be as follows: 

 

a) The Member agrees to pay the actual cost of purchases + 5% 
to the Agency. 

  

b) If delivery is requested from the Agency warehouse and made 
by Agency personnel, the Member agrees to pay the personnel 

and equipment costs of the delivery.  Delivery will be 

subject to personnel availability. 

 

c) If the Member elects to use a 3rd party shipping company for 
deliver from the Agency warehouse, the Member agrees to pay 

shipping costs. 

 

d) The Member agrees to pay the Agency within 30 days of 

receiving an invoice from the Agency. Failure to pay the 

Agency within thirty (30) days of receipt of an Agency 

invoice may result in an interest charge of one and one-

quarter percent (1.25%) interest per month, or fifteen 

percent (15%) per annum, on the outstanding balance until 

paid in full.       

 

e) In the event that payments are not received within 30 days 
of receiving an invoice from the Agency, The Agency reserves 

the right to decline further requests for purchases until 

the Member submits payment.  

 

13. The Member agrees to establish and provide to the Agency a list 

of personnel who are authorized to request purchases prior to 

making any request hereunder, and shall update such list from 

time to time or when there is any change thereto, and shall be 

solely responsible for oversight of authorized personnel. 

 

14. So long as the Agency reasonably relied on the purchase 

authorization given to it, the parties agree that the Agency 

shall be timely paid pursuant to its rates as set forth in 

Paragraph 2 above, subject however to set off for damages or 

claims for which the Agency or Vendor is responsible. 

 

15. Each Member must be prepared to: (1) take delivery of the Goods 

at its own facilities through direct shipping from the vendor; 

or (2) pick up the Goods delivered to the Agency’s storage 

facility on that member’s behalf no later than the pick-up date 

set by the Agency; or (3) arrange for delivery by the Agency 

personnel or a 3
rd
 party shipper. 

 

16. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each Member is 

exclusively responsible to exercise all of its rights and 

remedies against any manufacturer, seller, or other contractor 

for defective or nonconforming operations supplies procured 

under this agreement.   

Page 123 of 242



 4 

 

17. Each Member undertakes that it will indemnify and defend the 

Agency from all claims or liability arising from any and all 

damages to goods ordered by a Member that are to be delivered 

by “direct delivery”, unless such damages occur due to the 

negligent acts or omissions of the Agency.    

 

18. Each Member shall maintain all-risk insurance on Member Goods 

warehoused at the Agency’s facility. 

 

SECTION 2. - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

This Agreement is intended to serve as an avenue for more 

economic purchasing of material and supplies (“Goods”) at the 

discretion of the Member.  This Agreement does not require or imply 

any obligation for the Member to use the Agency as purchasing 

agent. In the event that a Member does use the Agency as its 

Purchasing Agent, the Member’s proposed purchase of Goods may be 

combined with those of other agencies to maximize savings to the 

Referring Agencies.  

 

 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any 

partnership or joint venture between the parties.  Each party shall 

at all times be independent of each other and shall not at any time 

purport to act as an employee of any other party. 

 

The Agency shall be excused for delay or failure to perform 

its obligations under this Agreement, in whole or part, when and to 

the extent that such delay or failure is a result of scheduling 

conflicts or causes beyond the reasonable control of the Agency.  

Such causes include, without limitation, acts of God, acts of the 

public enemy, acts of the federal or state government, fire, 

floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions or embargo.  In 

addition, the Agency shall not be responsible for delays caused by 

the acts or omissions of an outside contractor, not controlled by 

the Agency, if any. 

 

The Agency and the Member waive all rights against each other 

and any of their agents and employees, each of the other, for 

damages caused by fire or other causes of loss not incurred as the 

result of the Agency’s negligent act or omission to the extent 

covered by property insurance obtained pursuant to this 

Intergovernmental Agreement or other applicable property insurance, 

except the rights they have to proceeds of the insurance held by 

the Agency as fiduciary. A waiver of subrogation is effective as to 

a person or entity even though that person or entity would 

otherwise have a duty of indemnification, contractual or otherwise, 

did not pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly, and 

whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in 

the property damaged.  Notwithstanding the above, no such waiver 

shall be effective if, or to the extent, it is forbidden by or is a 

Page 124 of 242



 5 

breach of said party’s obligations under its contract with its 

insurance carrier. 

 
If the Agency is permitted to adjust a loss, a  loss insured 

under the Agency’s or a Member’s property insurance must be 

adjusted by the Agency as fiduciary and made payable to the Agency 

or the Member as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may 

appear. 

 

In accordance with Arizona State Board of Education Rule R7-2-

1192(4), failure of an Eligible Procurement Unit to secure 

performance from the contractor in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of its purchase order does not necessarily require any 

other School District to exercise its own rights or remedies.    

   

SECTION 3. – SEVERABILITY 

 

If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be 

unenforceable, it shall be deemed severable; however, the remainder 

of the Agreement shall not be affected and shall remain in full 

force and effect. 

 

SECTION 4. - DURATION OF AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement shall become effective upon the effective 

adoption and execution of this Agreement by both parties and, where 

required, the recordation of the same (the "Effective Date") and 

shall automatically renew itself from year to year thereafter, 

until terminated. 

 

SECTION 5. - LIABILITY INSURANCE 

 

Each party shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, 

a policy of liability insurance in the amount of not less than 

$1,000,000 per occurrence with aggregate liability coverage of not 

less than $3,000,000. Each party shall provide the other with proof 

of insurance within thirty (30) days after the execution of this 

Agreement. 

 

SECTION 6. – INDEMNIFICATION 

 

The Parties to this IGA shall indemnify and hold harmless each 

other and their respective, boards, employees, and agents, from any 

and all claims, liabilities, and expenses resulting from the 

indemnifying Party’s negligence, or the negligence, acts of 

omissions of its directors, employees, and agents incurred in 

connection with the performance of its responsibilities under this 

IGA.  Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver by either Party 

of the right to bring an action for contribution against the other 

or as against any third person or entity. 

 

Page 125 of 242



 6 

SECTION 7. - TERMINATION 

 

This Agreement will terminate immediately upon written notice 

to the other party should the governing body of either party fail 

to allocate funds for its continued implementation.  The Agency 

shall be entitled to compensation for all services provided up to 

the effective date of said notice. 

 

 In addition, either party may terminate their participation in 

this Agreement, for any reason, effective one hundred eighty (180) 

days from the giving of written notice to the other party at the 

following addresses: 

 

Central Arizona Fire & Medical Pinal Rural Fire Rescue/Medical 

Authority District 

Attn:  Fire Chief Attn:  Fire Chief 

8555 E. Yavapai Road PO Box 1075 

Prescott Valley, Arizona 86314  Mammoth, Arizona 85618 

 

 Pursuant to Arizona State Board of Education Rule R7-2-

1192(3), any Member School District may terminate without notice 

this Agreement if another Eligible Procurement Unit fails to comply 

with the terms of this Agreement.   

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement, pursuant to the 

requirements of A.R.S. §38-511. 

 

SECTION 8. - IMMIGRATION; LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE.  

 

Both parties are governmental entities that are required to 

comply with A.R.S. §41-4401.  The parties hereby warrant that they 

will, at all times during the terms of this Agreement, comply with 

all federal immigration laws applicable to the employment of their 

respective employees, the requirements of A.R.S. §41-4401, and with 

the e-verification requirements of A.R.S. §23-214(A) (together the 

"State and Federal Immigration Laws").   

 

A breach of a warranty regarding compliance with the State and 

Federal Immigration Laws shall be deemed a material breach of the 

Agreement and the parties who breach may be subject to penalties up 

to and including termination of the Agreement. 

 

SECTION 9. - CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES; CONTRIBUTION; THIRD PARTIES 

 

The Agency shall not be liable for any consequential damages 

associated with the delivery of material or supplies pursuant to 

this Agreement. 

 

Nothing herein shall be construed to waive any claim for 

contribution or allocation of fault as it relates to claims arising 

from the negligent action or omission of the other party. 

Page 126 of 242



 7 

 

This Agreement shall not be construed as a third party 

beneficiary contract and shall be intended to benefit only the 

parties named specifically herein. 

 

SECTION 10. - WORKERS' COMPENSATION COVERAGE 

 

All employees of a party to this Agreement, who works under 

the jurisdiction or control of, or who works within the 

jurisdictional boundaries of another party pursuant to this 

particular Agreement, shall be deemed to be an employee of the 

party who is his or her primary employer, as provided in A.R.S. 

§23-1022(D), and the primary employer/party of such an employee 

shall be solely liable for payment of workers' compensation 

benefits for the purposes of this section.  Each party herein shall 

comply with the provisions of A.R.S. §23-1022(E) by posting the 

public notice required.  In conjunction herewith, it is recognized 

that the Warehouse Operations Manager is an employee of the Agency 

for the purposes of employment and benefit law. 

 

SECTION 11. - NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 

The parties will not discriminate on the grounds of race, 

color, national origin, religion, sex, disability or familial 

status in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including 

procurement of materials and leases of equipment.  The parties will 

not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination 

prohibited by or pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 

1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 109 of 

the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, the Age 

Discrimination Act of 1975, the Genetic Discrimination Act of 2008, 

and Executive Orders 99-4 and 2000-4. 

 

SECTION 12.  -  BINDING EFFECT 

 

 This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and any 

successor in interest hereto, including subsequent boards, as 

elected, unless terminated as otherwise set forth herein.   

 

SECTION 13.  -  GOVERNING LAW 

 

 This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the 

substantive and procedural laws of the State of Arizona and shall 

be deemed made and entered into in Yavapai County, Arizona.  Any 

dispute arising hereunder shall be submitted for resolution in 

Yavapai County, Arizona.   

 

SECTION 14. - WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL; ATTORNEYS' FEES 

 

The parties hereto expressly covenant and agree that in the 

event of a dispute arising from this Agreement, each of the parties 

Page 127 of 242



 8 

hereto waives any right to a trial by jury.  In the event of 

litigation, the parties agree to submit to a trial before the 

Court.  The parties hereto further expressly covenant and agree 

that in the event of a dispute, mediation, arbitration or 

litigation arising from this IGA, each party shall bear its own 

attorneys' fees and costs and neither shall be entitled to an award 

of attorneys' fees. 

 

 This Agreement is intended to replace and supersede any prior 

agreements and amendments in their entirety, entered into between 

the parties relating to fire apparatus maintenance and repairs. 

 

SECTION 15.- No WAIVER 

 

No action or failure to act by any Member or the Agency 

constitutes a waiver of any right or duty under this 

Intergovernmental Agreement, nor does the action or failure to act 

constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach of the 

Agreement, unless all of the parties hereto memorialize the waiver 

or approval in writing and sign it. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties enter into this Agreement on 

the date set forth below. 

 

 

APPROVALS 

 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE & MEDICAL   PINAL RURAL FIRE RESCUE/MEDICAL 

AUTHORITY   DISTRICT 

 

 

      

Chairman/Fire Board Date  Chairman/Board Date 

 

 

 

      

Clerk/Fire Board Date  Clerk/Board Date 

 

 

 

      

Fire Authority Counsel Date  District Counsel Date 

Page 128 of 242



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  October 11, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF ARCHITECTURAL 

SERVICES FOR 8603 E. EASTRIDGE PROPERTY 

 
We have received three submittals to our architectural request for qualifications (RFQ) 
and have invited the architects to attend this Board meeting. The architects are Frank 
DeGrazia, Todd Marolf, and Michael Taylor. 
 
Staff is looking for Board direction. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  Approve architect ________ for 8603 E. Eastridge project. 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  

 

Page 131 of 242



 

September 14, 2016 

Dear Chief Freitag, 

On behalf of Mary Mallory and the Healing Field Team, we want to thank you for the support of the District and the participation 

of our CAFMA personnel. The Healing Field would be nearly impossible without the efforts of Erik Trujillo who keeps our flags 

and boots safe in the warehouse and helps stage the set-up and take-down along with personnel who take the time to come 

over and do the yeoman’s work. 

You should be very proud of Jeremiah King and the Honor Guard for the outstanding job they did on the Patriot Run. It was a 

well-attended event and the community outreach keeps growing every year. 

As always, your well spoken words are always heartfelt and pertinent to the times we live in.  

The flags will come down soon to rest another year in our warehouse under the caring eye of Erik.    

Until next year! 

Darlene Packard 

PV Patriot Week and Healing Field Chair 

Page 132 of 242



P
a
g
e
 1

3
3
 o

f 
2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 1

3
4
 o

f 2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 1

3
5
 o

f 2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 1

3
6
 o

f 2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 1

3
7
 o

f 2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 1

3
8
 o

f 2
4
2



Engine 58-B   
Olson
McFadden
Butterfield

P
a
g
e
 1

3
9
 o

f 2
4
2



P
a
g
e
 1

4
0
 o

f 2
4
2



 

18 October 2016  Page | 1  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Chief’s Report 

By Fire Chief Freitag 
 

So, you may or may not have heard that presidential candidate Donald Trump decided to visit 

our area. While this is not the only event that has occurred since the last Board meeting, it is 

certainly worthy of notation. We were informed on Wednesday, September 28th late in the day 

that the Trump campaign had finalized a deal with the Prescott Valley Event Center to hold a 

rally. While, according to MSNBC, we are not the most educated bunch, we did recognize based 

on historical information that we needed to prepare for the worst and hope for the best. We had 

intel that EMS calls at recent rallies ranged between 45 and 80. Additionally, there was a concern 

that we could see significant protests. Not that we were concerned about our residents causing a 

problem. Rather, we know that “they” generally bus protestors in from other areas. I’m not sure 

who “they” are, but whoever they are they seem to be a problem at times.  

 

We worked closely with Prescott Valley Police Department (PVPD) as well as many other 

regional, state and federal agencies to plan for the event. Ultimately, we called in staffing for 

additional engines as well as inside and outside EMS teams. Chief Bliss was asked to draft the 

Incident Action Plan by PVPD – this was a police heavy event as security was the primary focus. 

Chief Abel, Chief Bliss, Fire Marshal Chase, and I all attended numerous meetings in the few 

days leading up to the event.  

 

Our planning paid off as 1,000’s of people descended on our area without major incident. Of the 

approximately 12,000 people that attended the rally, only 50 were protestors – they were 

peaceful. In the end we treated 13 people, and PD arrested four.  

 

Kudos for our efforts came from a number of different sources. The State Fire Marshal called to 

complement our Fire Prevention staff as well as all who helped plan the event – he said it was 

better than what had taken place in Phoenix. Maricopa County sheriff deputies commented to 

PVPD that they had never seen such a high level of interagency cooperation. The Secret Service 

was impressed by the Incident Action Plan, and the fact that we would share it with them. 

Finally, when Prescott Airport told the Trump folks they couldn’t land his 737 at the airport, 

Trump was ready to pull the plug on the event. His lead in the area told him that the community 

support from the Event Center, Police, Fire, and others had been outstanding – based on that 

information, the decision was made not to cancel the event.  

 

There have been a couple of questions arise after the event. First, who paid? We did… The 

campaign does not pay for fire, EMS, and police coverage during events like this so ultimately it 

comes from our contingency funds. We could have refused to cover the event; however, that 

could lead to the collapse of our emergency services system should something have gone wrong. 

Second, why did we shut the door at 7,000 if the campaign gave out 17,000 tickets? The Event 

Center, Trump staff – all involved – knew in advance that the occupant load without seats on the 

floor was determined per code to be 7,000. They opted to over sell the event, because they 

normally only have 50% - 60% actually attend. Seems they underestimated their support in this 

state. That’s why they put up the mini-tron and had porta-potties set-up in the lot.  

 

Page 141 of 242



 

18 October 2016  Page | 2  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

We had to cancel the labor/management meeting due to the Trump event, and we have not had a 

chance to reschedule, so I do not have an update this month. However, I have heard from the 

union leadership that things seem to be going well with just minor issues here and there. We are 

aware that there are at least three of our current employees that may be leaving for agencies in 

Oregon and Washington; those agencies are offering lateral transfers. Two of three are leaving 

for family reasons, if they go. I am happy to say that they are struggling with the decision, 

because they feel we have a good agency that has a lot of opportunity to offer. Bottom line is 

family will generally trump organization.  

 

I have been attending the candidate forums for the Central Yavapai Fire District (CYFD) Board 

candidates – not in uniform. My purpose is simply to hear what the candidates are saying and 

provide clarification for folks who have questions. The Fire Authority remains a mystery to 

many; even candidates have difficulty explaining the relationship. Early voting begins 

Wednesday, Oct 12th.  

 

I attended the Baggers meeting in Glendale on the 22nd and 23rd of September. Baggers is an 

invitation only meeting of fire service leaders from around the country. It is a round table format 

over the two days facilitated by Alan Brunacini. Each person in attendance has an opportunity to 

discuss what is happening in their area which leads to a discussion by the entire group before 

moving on to the next person. I talked about the Authority as well as some of the concepts we are 

working on with the schools. The editor of Firehouse Magazine was in attendance and asked me 

to submit an article outlining the programs we are developing with the schools. He may be 

interested in additional articles based on some of the things our organization is doing i.e. 

efficiencies, community involvement, planning, and/or overall personnel development. Seems 

others feel we are headed in the right direction.  

 

That said, we need to stay on track and continue to innovate. 
  

Page 142 of 242



 

18 October 2016  Page | 3  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Administration  
By Assistant Chief Tharp 
 

While we are still maintaining services to our internal and external customers, we are focused on 

a couple of areas in Administration. Specifically, preparing for our upcoming audit, working on 

the set up and implementation of our Records Retention Software – Document Locator, and 

looking to make our evaluation and payroll processes more efficient by creating and utilizing 

fillable forms and electronic signatures. As an organization, we are constantly looking for ways 

to improve efficiency and hopefully – reduce costs. Simple measures, like utilizing fillable forms 

and electronic signatures reduces processing and with creating electronic forms that can be 

placed in “electronic” personnel files within our Records Retention Software – it reduces the use 

of paper – both leading to small savings. But those little savings compound into cost reduction or 

containment. Every little bit helps and the following statistics may illustrate why we look at little 

efficiencies to contain costs –  why it has translated into a movement in the fire service to look at 

their operations as a business – and ultimately why more fire organizations are looking at  

mergers, consolidations, or joint powers authorities (JPAs).  
 

The following statistics were provided by the Department of Revenue. As I have explained 

before, our tax rate and budget increases fall under a number of statutory limitations including 

the $3.25 maximum rate cap, a 8% allowable budget increase and, of course, the Net Assessed 

Value (NAV) maximum increase of 5%. Though statute allows for short term voter override of 

the tax rate, budgetary and NAV increases are still limits that can restrict funding. Every year, 

the County Assessor’s office submits a report to each organization about their proposed 

allowable tax rate, NAV, and maximum levy possible for collection. This report is also presented 

to the Property Tax Oversight Commission (PTOC) – a state review of compliance with the 

various budget, tax rate and NAV restrictions and they must “sign off” on your budget, NAV 

(including any new reported annexations) and tax rate. The PTOC announced the following for 

Fire Districts in Arizona as reported at the AFDA monthly Board of Directors meeting. 
 

Of the 150 Fire Districts in Arizona (there were 156 but some have consolidated, or merged) – 

54 fire districts have a tax rate at $3.25, or higher, with 5 districts asking for an override in 

November. That is 36% of all fire districts at the maximum tax rate. Of the 150 Fire Districts in 

Arizona, 95 have a levy capacity of $0 to $50,000, and an additional 16 districts have a capacity 

of $50,000 to $100,000. That means that 74% of all districts have less than $100,000 

MAXIMUM levy capacity for additional revenue. There are only 39 districts in Arizona that 

have more than $100,000 in levy capacity – either by allowable budget increase or tax rate. This 

information is presented for the sole purpose of reminding the boards why we implemented a 

Joint Management Agreement (JMA), then the Joint Powers Authority (JPA), and that expenses 

are slowly overcoming revenues. The fire service in Arizona must look for sound business 

solutions while trying to educate legislators as to the potential service impacts that these 

limitations may impose.  
 

“Out of the Box” thinking and implementation are not only “creative” for the fire service, but are 

necessary. As we move towards beginning our budget processes (yes, it will begin this month 

with the Capital Replacement Schedule Review) we must be mindful of how important sound 

financial planning and flexible operations will become the “norm” of this organization.  

Page 143 of 242



 

18 October 2016  Page | 4  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Fire Prevention 
By Fire Marshal Chase 
 

Construction: 

 Progress on Johns Auto Works building on Eastridge Drive in Prescott Valley is getting close 

to completion and should be opening soon. 

 Morrison Motors has re-opened after last year’s fire destroyed their business. Their new 

location is at the north end of Chino Valley on Highway 89. 

 Native Grill and Wings began construction in the Crossroads area on Highway 69 in Prescott 

Valley. The underground piping for the sprinkler system has been inspected by prevention 

personnel.  

 Paulden Community Library on Big Chino Road will be opening soon. 

 The construction for a cultivation site on Valley Road in Prescott Valley is in progress. 

 Family Medical Walk-In moved to their new facility at 1934 Highway 89 in Chino Valley. 

 Chino Valley Pharmacy will be opening soon next door to the Family Medical Walk-In. 

 Riliberto's Mexican Food on Highway 69 in Prescott Valley is almost ready for their grand 

opening. 

 A new office building was built at C&R Trucking located on Road 4 North in Chino Valley. 

 La-Z-Boy opened at 5584 E. Highway 69 in Prescott Valley. 

 Paulden Ace Hardware located at 23990 Marblehead is now open. 

 Dollar Tree will be moving next to Shopco on Highway 89 in Chino Valley. 

General: 

 Safe Trick or Treat at the Prescott Valley Event Center will be taking place on Halloween. 

CAFMA will have the black engine there, and we will be handing out candy. 

 Mortimer Farms is having their annual Pumpkin Festival throughout the month of October. A 

safety inspection and permit from CAFMA was provided to them on September 30th.  

 The Fire Pals have started teaching in the schools this month. I have received positive 

feedback about the program from the two Fire Pals teaching in the Chino Valley schools. 

 Annual school inspections have been scheduled this month. Thank you to Fire Inspectors 

Ayars and Dowdy and Firefighter Muniz for their hard work and long days getting these 

completed. 

 Fire Inspectors Ayars and Dowdy have been receiving training for responding the water 

tenders and utility vehicle to structure fires. Thank you to Captain Burch for providing this 

training. This will add two more personnel for emergency responses. 

 Fire Marshal Chase taught a fire extinguisher training class to 20 employees at the Prescott 

Valley Library. 

Page 144 of 242



 

18 October 2016  Page | 5  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 Fire Inspectors Ayars and Dowdy attended this year's Arizona State Fire School and took the 

Fire and Life Safety Educator I Class. 

 Fire Marshal Chase and Assistant Fire Marshal Smith assessed the upper Blue Hills area to 

determine what roads had the thickest roadside vegetation and highest probability of a 

wildfire. We are working with PAWUIC and USAA Insurance to have a crew from USAA 

perform mitigation work in that area. 

 Fire Marshal Chase attended a multijurisdictional wildland fuels mitigation workshop at 

Yavapai County Emergency Management on September 22nd.  

 PAWUIC Chairman Bob Betts and I were requested by Humboldt Elementary School staff to 

provide them with a defensible space property assessment of their grounds.  

 Assistant Fire Marshal Smith and I attended an Arizona Fire Marshals' meeting in Mesa on 

September 7th.  

Events attended/requested by CAFMA: 

9/11 9/11 Memorial at the Town of Prescott Valley - Several CAFMA personnel attended.  

9/17 AYSO Soccer Opening Ceremony at the Chino Valley Community Center – Battalion 

Chief Mayhall assisted with the landing zone for Native Air and Engine 61 was present 

for public interaction. 

9/21 Careers on Wheels at Bradshaw Mountain High School – Engine 58 and Acting Battalion 

Chief Brody Fields attended for students to visit with and ask questions regarding a 

career in the fire service. 

9/21 Station Tour - C Shift Engine 50 - Relatives of the Granite Mountain 19 

9/28 Annual bonfire at Bradshaw Mountain High School – Battalion Chief Abel and Engine 

50 attended 

9/30 Fire Extinguisher Class – Fire Marshal Chase taught a class including hands-on training 

for employees of the Town of Prescott Valley Library. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Fire Prevention Activities 

99 Business Inspections 

08 Construction Inspections / Reviews 

14 Alarm / Sprinkler Testing and Plan Reviews 

03 Fire Investigations 

07 Preconstruction Meetings / Plan Reviews 

12 Defensible Space Assessments 

Page 145 of 242



 

18 October 2016  Page | 6  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Operations 
By Assistant Chief Polacek 
 

Over the past month Operations completed another successful Fire Fighter Academy. Cody 

Rafters and Kayleen Weiland successfully completed the six week training academy. Captain 

Dustin Parra and Engineer Eric Merrill were the lead instructors for the academy working with 

the engine companies and the Training Division to provide the 240 hour training program. 

During their time in the academy they learned the ways of the Central Arizona Fire and Medical 

Authority. The training program included Physical Fitness, Rescue and Extrication, our 

Minimum Company Standards, Standard Operating Procedures, Policies, Live Fire Training, 

Driver Training, extensive training on our equipment, and ride-a-longs weekly with different 

engine companies. They graduated the Academy on September 27th and began shift work the 

first week of October. I want to welcome Cody and Kayleen to the District. They will be 

assigned to Battalion 3 for the first six months and Battalion 6 for the second six months of their 

year of probation. We are also conducting our engineer testing to establish an eligibility list for 

the position of engineer. We have 11 applicants going through the testing process. 

  

We prepared and increased staffing for the Trump Rally at the Event Center in Prescott Valley. 

This required us to prepare for the event by working with outside agencies including Prescott 

Fire Department, Prescott Valley Police Department, Prescott Police Department, Yavapai 

County Sheriff's Office, Yavapai County Emergency Management, Maricopa County Sheriff's 

Office, Department of Public Safety (DPS), and the Secret Service. The event required us to staff 

three additional engines, provide three interior EMS crews, three exterior EMS crews, and a 

contingency group so we could be prepared for the worst. The event was a success, as we ran 13 

medical calls and police had four arrests from unruly protesters. The partners were impressed 

with our planning and organization for the event as well as our overall working relations with the 

partnering agencies. 

 

We continue to work with the City of Prescott on the development of the new computer added 

dispatch (CAD) system. Nate Keegan from Prescott IT Department is the lead on this project and 

is working with all the agencies dispatched out of the Prescott Regional Communications Center 

to ensure that the specifications for the project meet the needs of all of the partnering agencies. 

We are working through the process and are hoping to get the final proposal by the end of the 

year. 

  

We had a representative from Insurance Service Organization (ISO) visit the district recently. 

We have a new representative in the area, so we spent the day touring the district getting the 

representative familiar with the district. We scheduled the site visit for November 17th. This will 

be the evaluation for CAFMA, and we are working with them to get the information they need to 

help the evaluation to be successful.  

 
  

Page 146 of 242



 

18 October 2016  Page | 7  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Planning and Logistics 
By Assistant Chief Bliss 
 

The Trump rally at the beginning of the month caused a short period of unusual activity for the 

entire agency. As one person stated, the event was a drawn out version of an emergency 

response. And, as with the daily emergency calls we are used to, regular duties were put on hold 

until the situation was over. For Planning and Logistics that meant that Technical Services put 

together a communications plan and provided radios to the increased fire and EMS personnel, 

Fleet made sure that we had apparatus available and in place for extra staffing, and the 

Warehouse provided water and other logistical support. My role was to work with the other 

Chief Officers and Town of Prescott Valley personnel to develop and deliver a documented plan 

for the fire, medical, and police resources. The process that unfolded with Prescott Valley Police 

as well as the other Prescott Valley town resources was one of the smoothest that I have seen in 

the area. We have made a lot of progress over the years in working together as an area. 

 

Warehouse Operations Manager Erik Trujillo is working to integrate the EMS equipment across 

the Agency. This project falls well into regular practices of reviewing costs and functionality of 

medical equipment. A lot of input is received from EMS Captain Doug Niemynski. In a recent 

example, we found that Central Yavapai and Chino Valley Fire Districts had been using different 

brands for intubation tools. After review, Erik and Doug have decided to use the brand that 

Chino had in their EMS kits which are cheaper and also disposable. The disposable option will 

eliminate one of the cleanup problems that the crews routinely face after medical calls. 

 

The HVAC work that was approved for Station 63 has been completed and Facilities 

Maintenance Coordinator Tom Muniz is scheduling the roof replacement for Station 57. The 

hazmat vehicle is almost complete and is expected in service shortly. Fleet Services is catching 

up on workload, and the majority of the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority decals are 

on apparatus and stations. There are a few remaining, and we will be keeping an eye out for any 

that were missed.  

 
  

Page 147 of 242



 

18 October 2016  Page | 8  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Training 
By Training Chief Feddema 
 

The CARTA campus was quieter once the Firefighter Academy was complete. The graduation 

was held at CARTA on September 27th, both Firefighters did very well. The graduation was 

well attended and provided an opportunity for their family members and co-workers to honor 

their accomplishment and get a glimpse into the hard work that they put into their six week 

academy. During the academy they were put through a rigorous workout routine each day and 

then put into various scenarios that they may face during their career. The goal of the academy is 

to educate the individual firefighters into the values, policies, and firefighting techniques used by 

CAFMA. The low student to instructor ratio allows us to focus on the individual abilities of the 

firefighter candidate. During these challenging situations we are able to evaluate their mental 

performance when they are physically exhausted.  

 

The campus was not quiet for very long because of the firefighters who were preparing for the 

Engineer’s test. Prior to each test we try to help facilitate practice opportunities for the 

firefighters who are preparing for the test. We have had our driving cone course set around the 

CARTA campus. It is nice to have the roads clear now that the Engineer’s test is complete. 

Everyone did very well, and we are all waiting for the official results to be posted. The test is 

very physically and mentally taxing for the candidates who are looking to promote as well as for 

the evaluators who are trying to facilitate a fair and thorough evaluation.  

 

The campus has also been busy with the Yavapai College Firefighter Academy, the CAFMA 

Paramedic refresher, and the Yavapai County Emergency Management Public Information 

Officer course. These courses continue to keep the campus busy with activity. We are also busy 

as a staff looking forward into the future to ensure we bring other courses in the future. The 

Captain’s Academy is one of those courses that we are preparing for in November and brings a 

large group of individuals to CARTA from around the state of Arizona. 

  

Page 148 of 242



 

18 October 2016  Page | 9  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Response Report 

By GIS | Records Management Specialist Freeman 

 

Responses in District

TOTAL FIRE 12 In District Total

        BLDG FIRE 3 E50 132 134

        BLDG CONTAINED 1 E51 27 148

        MOBILE HOME/PORTABLE BLDG 1 E53 159 159

        VEHICLE 2 E54 123 124

        BRUSH/GRASS 3 E57 33 36

        OTHER 2 E58 152 154

Fire is 1.29% of call volume E59 105 108

TOTAL EMS 619 T50 4 4

EMS is 66.56% of call volume E61 88 88

OVERPRESSURE 0 E62 118 122

HAZMAT 10 E63 41 41

SERVICE 138

GOOD INTENT 117

FALSE ALARM/OTHER 34 MONTH YTD

Other is 32.15% of call volume PFD 703 6,320

TOTAL # OF CALLS 930 CAFMA 930 8,333

GCFD 16 122

Residential Fire Loss $180,500 OD 5 50

Vehicle Fire Loss $64,516 WKFD 5 35

Calls in Town of Chino Valley 95

Calls in Town of Prescott Valley 453

Calls in Town of Dewey-Humboldt 42 570 EMS

Calls in rest of District 340 78 Cancelled en Route

Calls out of District 2 78 Publice Service Assistance

34 Assist Invalid

Average total # of calls per day 31.00 27 Vehicle Accident w/Injuries

Avg fire calls per day 0.40

Avg EMS calls per day 20.63  

Avg all other calls per day 9.97 50:  46  57:  11

51:  33 61:  11

Auto Aid Given                       114 53:  21 62:  11

Auto Aid Received                    62 54:  12 63:  10

Mutual Aid Given                  1 58:  21

Mutual Aid Received              0 59:  21 TOTAL: 197

Move Ups by Station

Top 5 Call Types

Unit Responses 

Land Area:  248 sq. miles      Population:  86,865     Fire Stations:  10 Staffed Stations

Call Volume at PRCC

Page 149 of 242



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  October 11, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE POLICY AMENDMENTS FOR 202 TESTING, 810 DISTRICT 

VEHICLES, AND MOVE POLICY 820 HYDRANT TESTING TO 
STANDARD OPERATING GUIDELINES (SOG) MANUAL 

 
The Policy Committee has approved the following policy changes: 
 
202 Testing – Added detailed language related to initial testing.  
 
810 District Vehicles – Made minor revision for clarification and added reference to Drug 
Testing Policy. 
 
820 Hydrant Testing – Approved moving Hydrant Testing Policy to Standard Operating 
Guidelines (SOG) Manual. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  Approve Policy Amendments for 202 Testing, 810 District 
Vehicles, and move Policy 820 Hydrant Testing to SOG Manual 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 

Page 150 of 242



202 TESTING POLICY 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 
Reviewed:  04/06/201009/27/2016 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

I. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this policy is to establish procedures to follow for pre-employment 
and promotional testing within the Agency. 

 
II. SCOPE 

 
This policy applies to candidates applying for employment with the Agency – 
part-time or fulltime and current Agency members applying for promotional 
opportunities. 

 
III. POLICY 
 

For all outside testing, Human Resources will develop and administer the 
appropriate written and/or oral interview process, following established guidelines 
in policy and SOG.  
 
Operations Positions: Outside candidates for full-time firefighter positions will be 
tested following the guidelines in Policy 221 – Full Time Preliminary/Promotional/ 
Probationary Requirements. Candidates must achieve a passing score of 70% or 
above on the written portion of the test to be considered for an oral review board 
interview. The number of candidates who receive an invitation to an oral review 
board will be based on written test score ranking, and will be no less than 25% of 
the total number of candidates who passed the written test. Successful 
candidates will be forwarded to the Fire Chief for a final interview and hiring 
decision.  
 
Non-Operations Positions: Testing may consist of written, assessment, and/or 
oral interviews applicable to the position being offered. Successful candidates will 
be forwarded to the Fire Chief for a final interview and hiring decision.  
 
For all applicable promotional testing, the following process applies: 

 Take promotional test. 

 Test results prepared and available for review. 

 Review test results within 30 days of availability. 

 Grievances (if necessary) must be filed within 7 days of physically reviewing 
test results. 

 The eligibility list will be published following the 30-day review period or any 
grievance process. 

 
A passing score shall be 70% on examinations. 
 

Page 151 of 242



202 TESTING POLICY 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 
Reviewed:  04/06/201009/27/2016 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

The percentage score of 70% or more received in each examination phase will 
be converted to the appropriate relative point value. If an examination phase is 
failed, the applicant will fail the entire testing process.  
 
Frequency of testing: 

Assistant Chief - as needed 
Battalion Chief - as needed 
Company Officer -18 months 
Engineer -18 months 
Firefighters - as needed 
All Others - as needed 

 
Promotional lists created from testing will expire the last business day prior to the 
next testing cycle for the positions of Engineer and Captains. Tests conducted 
"as needed" will have a hiring list for 12 months. The Fire Chief may order 
promotional testing at a greater frequency to fill vacant positions if a promotional 
list has expired, or the Fire Chief may make a temporary appointment. 
 
College and Credit 
Transcripts for college credits and Arizona DHS Certifications for medical credit 
must be attached to each application package and turned into Administration by 
the application deadline. The Human Resources will evaluate and award points 
based on each transcript and certificate. 

 

Page 152 of 242



810 DISTRICT VEHICLES 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 
Reviewed:  08/02/201109/27/2016 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

I. PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of the policy is to establish standards for the use of Agency vehicle, 
to ensure that the work related transportation needs of the Agency are met, and 
to protect the liability of the Agency. 

 
II. SCOPE 

 
The provision of this policy extends to the use of all Agency staff and utility 
vehicles and does not address the use of emergency apparatus. All individuals 
authorized to drive Agency vehicles shall comply with these standards. 

 
III. POLICY 

 
Authority 
The Fire Chief will assign Agency vehicles to individuals, stations, or specific 
functions in the best interest of the Agency. Vehicle assignments may change 
either permanently or temporarily to accommodate Agency business needs. 
Agency vehicles will be equipped and marked as approved by the Fire Chief. 
 
Standards 

 No equipment, markings, or additional lighting may be added to or removed 
from any Agency vehicle without the approval of the Fire Chief.  

 

 Vehicles are to be used for Agency business purposes only. 
o Members who are assigned vehicles may drive an assigned vehicle to and 

from home but may not use it for general personal use. The vehicle may 
be used for evening and weekend Agency business and response to 
alarms at the discretion of the Chief Officer. 

o In all cases discretion must be exhibited in the use of vehicles to avoid the 
appearance of abuse or misuse. 

 

 Agency vehicles, except under exceptional and temporary conditions, shall be 
driven by Agency members only. All drivers shall hold a valid State of Arizona 
Driver’s License and maintain a driving record that supports insurability with 
Agency’s insurer. 

 

 The driver and all passengers shall use seat belts. 
 

 Smoking is prohibited in Agency vehicles. 
 

 The use of cell phones, pagers, or other devices that could distract the driver 
should be avoided. 

 

Page 153 of 242



810 DISTRICT VEHICLES 
Created/Revised:  07/01/2016 
Reviewed:  08/02/201109/27/2016 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 Agency vehicles shall be driven in accordance with all applicable traffic laws. 
o The driver is responsible for payment of any fines levied for driver related 

violations. 
 

 Vehicles shall be driven within the operational and design limits of the vehicle. 
Special attention must be given to traffic, weather, and other road conditions. 

 

 Agency vehicles shall not be used for the storage of personal belongings that 
could interfere with the use of the vehicle for any Agency purpose. 

 

 Assigned driver wWill be responsible to see that the vehicle is kept clean and 
in good mechanical condition. 

 

 All accidents, regardless of severity, and any damage to Agency vehicles 
shall immediately be reported to the Fire Chief or the Battalion Chief after 
regular working hours. 
o The driver shall ensure required police reports are filed and insurance 

information is exchanged, as the situation requires. 
o The driver shall not admit wrongdoing but simply report the accurate 

details of the incident as they occurred. 
o The driver shall obtain a drug screen as soon as possiblepursuant to Drug 

Testing Policy following any accident involving personal injury or property 
damage as directed. 
  

Page 154 of 242



820 HYDRANT TESTING 
Created/Revised: 07/01/2016 
Reviewed: 08/02/201109/27/2016 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

I. PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of the policy is to establish standards for testing hydrants. 

 
II. SCOPE 

 
This policy extends to all Agency members conducting hydrant inspections. 

 
III. POLICY 
 

HYDRANT TESTING 
All fire hydrants within the water distribution system will be serviced annually. 
One-fifth of the hydrants will be flow tested according to Insurance Services 
Organization (ISO) requirements. Company officers are responsible for the 
servicing, testing, documentation, and notification to Fire Prevention of the 
needed repair to fire hydrants assigned to them. Hydrants needing repair should 
be documented on the appropriate form and notification sent to Fire Prevention. 
 
Notification 
Before testing or servicing hydrants, company officers must notify the water 
department of their intent and the geographical location of the hydrants being 
tested. Hydrants may not be tested on weekends, holidays, or after 1430 hours. 
 
Servicing Procedures 

 Check caps for tightness. 

 Open and close the hydrant slowly. 

 Remove a cap and check for hydrant drain. 

 Check all gaskets for serviceability. 

 Lube threads with silicone spray. 

 Replace caps. 

 Remove vegetation from within 6' (notify homeowners before removing 
landscaping). 

 Paint hydrants as needed. 

 Enter hydrants not listed on maps or hydrant books in same with a follow-up 
to hydrant program manager 

 
If there are problems with a hydrant, document the nature of the problem in the 
hydrant book, and notify Fire Prevention of the problem and location of the 
hydrant. If the hydrant is out of service, flag it, and notify dispatch and Fire 
Prevention.  
 
Testing Procedures 

 Open and close hydrant slowly. 

Page 155 of 242



820 HYDRANT TESTING 
Created/Revised: 07/01/2016 
Reviewed: 08/02/201109/27/2016 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 Remove a cap and check for drain. 

 Place the static gauge on the hydrant. 

 Open fully and record the static pressure. 

 Close hydrant, remove the other 2-1/2” cap utilizing the diverter tube flow the 
hydrant. 

 Document the residual pressure. 

 Close and service. 
 
NOTE:  COMPANIES MUST EXERCISE CAUTION TO AVOID DAMAGE 
CAUSED BY FLOW TESTING HYDRANTS; ANY DAMAGE DONE WILL BE 
CLEANED UP IMMEDIATELY.  
 
NEW HYDRANTS OR STREETS FOUND 
 
If new hydrants or streets are found: 
 
1. Test and service the hydrant. 
 
2. Draw new streets or hydrants on the appropriate Agency map. 

 
3. Forward information to the Mapping Program Manager and to Fire 

Prevention. 
 

Page 156 of 242



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  October 11, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2016-14 

SPONSORING A TYPE 3 INCIDENT MANAGEMENT TEAM FOR 
REGIONAL SUPPORT IN ARIZONA 

 
We have provided support for the Northern Arizona Type 3 Incident Management Team 
and are asking for Board approval for Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Fire 
Chief and staff to work with and sponsor them. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  Approve Resolution 2016-14 to work with and sponsor the 
Northern Arizona Type 3 Incident Management Team 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 

Page 157 of 242



P
a
g
e
 1

5
8
 o

f 
2
4
2



CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 

 

RESOLUTION 2016-14 

 

SPONSOR TYPE 3 INCIDENT MANAGEMENT TEAM FOR 

ARIZONA REGIONAL SUPPORT 

 

 

A FORMAL RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE CENTRAL ARIZONA 

FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY TO SPONSOR THE NORTHERN ARIZONA TYPE 

THREE INCIDENT MANAGEMENT TEAM. 

 

The undersigned authorized representative of Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority, 

hereby certifies that the following resolution was duly adopted by the board on this 18th day of 

October, 2016, and that such resolution has not been modified or rescinded as of the date hereof: 

 

RESOLVED, that the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority hereby approves the Fire Chief 

and staff to work with and sponsor the Northern Arizona Type 3 Incident Management Team. 

They are hereby authorized and directed to work with Yavapai County Emergency Management 

as well as emergency services agencies in Northern Arizona to staff and train the team. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of October, 2016. 

 

 

   

 Board Chairman 

 Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 

 

ATTEST: 

  

Board Clerk 

Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 

 

Page 159 of 242


	Agenda
	2016 9 20 CAFMA Minutes - Draft.pdf
	2016 9 20 CAFMA Minutes - Executive Draft 2.pdf
	General Fund.pdf
	Physio Control Agreement and Addendum.pdf
	Pinal Rural Fire Purchasing Agreement.pdf
	Architect Questions.pdf
	Architectural Services - Coversheet.pdf
	Patriot Week Thank You.pdf
	Thank You 1.pdf
	Thank You 2.pdf
	Thank You 3.pdf
	Thank You 4.pdf
	National Night Out.pdf
	2016 10 18 Division Report.pdf
	Policy Changes - Coversheet.pdf
	202 Testing redlined 9-27-2016.pdf
	810 District Vehicles rev 9-27-2016.pdf
	820 Hydrant Testing 9-27-2016.pdf
	Type 3 Incident Team Coversheet and Resolution 2016-14.pdf
	SF-1625- 238 N Hwy 89- Chino Valley- Central Arizona Fire and Medical.pdf
	SF-1625 Invoice - Appraisal.pdf



